BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

MINUTES OF CHILDREN, ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Monday, 14th April, 2025

Present:- Councillors Dine Romero, Liz Hardman, Paul Crossley, Anna Box (in place of
David Harding), Ruth Malloy, Lesley Mansell, Onkar Saini and Michael Auton (in place of
Bharat Pankhania)

Apologies for absence: Councillors: Joanna Wright

95

96

97

98

99

100

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Councillor David Harding had sent his apologies to the Panel, Councillor Anna Box
was present as his substitute for the duration of the meeting.

Councillor Bharat Pankhania had sent his apologies to the Panel, Councillor Michael
Auton was present as his substitute for the duration of the meeting.

Councillor Joanna Wright had sent her apologies to the Panel.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THIS MEETING

Melissa Hillier (ReMind UK) & Ruth Lane (ForgetMeNot Club) addressed the Panel

on the subject of a Dementia Strategy, a summary of their statement is set out
below.

‘Background

Within the local Ageing Well Network, discussions have been held regarding the
need for Bath and North East Somerset to have a Dementia Strategy. Following

151

Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



further research the only strategy currently available is the Mental Health
Commissioning Strategy but nothing that relates specifically to services for people
living with dementia.

BaNES has an estimated 2700 people living with dementia (with only 40% of these
with a diagnosis) and this is due to increase by 36% by 2030 to over 3670.

Proposal

For 3SG group members to support the Council in the coordination of a Dementia
Strategy for the area. The working party will have representatives as follows:
e NHS Adult Care representatives.
BaNES Council representatives.
Local housing representatives.
Local service providers.
ICB Board representative
HCRG Care representative
GP representative

We are here today to ask that the Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy
Development and Scrutiny Panel approve in principle the need for the production of
a dementia strategy for local residents and agree that the Council will take a leading
role in this process.

Aim

We would like to produce a strategy which will outline what people living with
dementia in BaNES can expect from all services from diagnosis through to end of life
care.

The strategy will ensure that anyone, despite where they live within BaNES, can
receive the same approach for dementia services. It will give guidance to all service
providers and a clear pathway from diagnosis to end of life for people living with
dementia. The strategy itself will also help us focus on the gaps in service provision,
and aid future commissioning of services.’

The Chair asked if both ReMind UK & ForgetMeNot Club were part of 3SG.

Melissa Hillier replied that they were and that she was the Vice-Chair of 3SG.

Kevin Burnett asked if they had seen related strategies from other Local Authorities.
Melissa Hillier replied that both Swindon and Wilshire have a Dementia Strategy and
that as B&NES was part of the same Integrated Care Board (BSW ICB) they should
be able to use that information as their strategy is developed. She added that the

strategy should be co-produced with service users.

The Chair asked that this matter be referred to the Cabinet Member for Adult
Services and for it to be added to the Panel’s Forward Plan.

152
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Councillor Alison Born, Cabinet Member for Adult Services said that the subject had
been raised with her a few weeks ago and that she was in discussions with the
Director of Adult Social Care to allocate a lead officer from the Council.

Councillor Liz Hardman asked that the Panel be updated on the progress of this
work at their meeting on 16" June 2025.

Councillor Lesley Mansell said that she agreed with the need to have a B&NES
Dementia Strategy, that it should be developed with the feedback from service users
and must be in place across the whole of the Council area.

Ruth Lane stated that in her role she works with service users on a daily basis and
would ensure that their views are taken into account.

The Director of Adult Social Care said that quite a lot of work was already ongoing in
this area and that there is an existing Mental Health Strategy and that Dementia was
included as part of that strategy. She said that they need to make sure that they add
value to the work already underway.

Laura Ambler, BSW ICB said that she welcomed the opportunity for the ICB to
become engaged, to support this work and input into the commissioning intentions.

Melissa Hillier commented that she would like to encourage those involved to look
beyond health matters and to produce a standalone Dementia Strategy.

The Chair thanked Melissa and Ruth for their statement on behalf of the Panel and
said they look forward to seeing the strategy develop.

Wendy Lucas addressed the Panel on the issue of respite care and Newton House,
a summary of her statement is set out below. She explained that this was her third
statement to them this year and that they were now around 8 months away from
having to find alternative provision from that currently provided at Newton House.

She said that despite an initial positive meeting with officers from Adult Social Care
she was now concerned about the impetus being shown regarding the ongoing
process.

She stated that there are around 6 million carers in the UK and that if all were to stop
doing this role the NHS would come to its knees.

She urged the Panel to ensure that the pace of this process is increased to ensure
that a continuity of service is provided for their family members.

The Chair thanked her for her statement and asked if any meetings had taken place
and how she felt the process should move forward.

Wendy Lucas replied that a meeting had taken place between family members,
Dimensions and officers from Adult Social Care initially and that in March another
meeting was held with the Director of Adult Social Care. She added that she was
really worried that no timeline has been shared with the families and that it would be
challenging to have a replacement provision in place within 8 months.

153
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Councillor Liz Hardman asked if a timetable of meetings had been put in place for
the families of the service users of Newton House.

Wendy Lucas replied that there were no further meetings scheduled for them
currently.

The Chair, on behalf of the Panel, thanked Wendy Lucas for her statement.
101 MINUTES: 10TH MARCH 2025

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record and they
were duly signed by the Chair.

102 CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Councillor Alison Born, Cabinet Member for Adult Services addressed the Panel and
highlighted the following points from her update.

Statutory Services

We are approaching the one year anniversary of the transfer of ASC statutory
services back to B&NES Council. In order to minimise disruption, no changes were
made to services at the point of transfer but managers have been working with
practitioners over the past year to review and revise operational practices and to
improve training and development.

Adult Requlated Services

As part of our continual improvement journey, an organisation called Care for Quality
has been invited to undertake another round of mock inspections of services in late
April/early May and the CQC action plan continues to be reviewed with the
management team on a monthly basis.

Community Partners - Community support related to adult social care

Responsibility for commissioning these services transferred from HCRG to B&NES
council on April 15t 2025. The council has worked with community partners to
complete due diligence processes and negotiate bridging contracts and grant
funding agreements for 2025/26. Most of these contracts and agreements have been
issued for signature and several have been signed by providers. A small number of
contracts are in the final stage of negotiations, aiming to finalise as soon as
agreements have been reached.

Finance

Adult Social Care is projecting delivery of its savings targets for 2024/5 and a break-
even position at year end. This is particularly noteworthy given the increased activity
and complexity the service has faced, especially in Mental Health (MH), Older
Persons (OP), and Learning Disabilities (LD). Congratulations to all involved as this
will ensure that the service starts the new financial year from a position of strength.

154
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Public Health

e New public health contracts - The new public health contracts for Drug and
Alcohol Services (Turning Point), Wellness services (Everyone Health) and
Public Health Nursing Services (HCRG Care Group) began on 1st April 2025.

e Health protection issue in K&A Canal, Widcombe - The health protection team
have recently responded to concerns from members of the public about an
apparent mass poisoning of fish in Widcombe Section of the Kennet and Avon
Canal.

e Leisure Services - Summer opening hours have started at Royal Victoria Park
Golf with the course now open 7 days per week for Foot Golf (12 holes) and
pitch and putt golf (currently 9 holes but due to increase to 18 once Green
treatments are completed). Progress is also being made on the Adventure
Golf Course at Dragonfly Leisure centre in Midsomer Norton with the course
due to open later this month.

Councillor Liz Hardman referred to the Carer’s Strategy and asked that if
amendments are to be made to it they should be shared with the Panel.

The Director of Adult Social Care agreed and said that some fantastic co-production
had taken place, and that the delivery plan was ongoing.

The Chair suggested that an update be provided to the Panel as part of their June
meeting.

Councillor Hardman asked why the commissioning of Community Partner services
had been brought back in house.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that it had always been the intention to do
so and that they have worked with 3SG on this matter. She added that it was hoped
that the move could lead to increased funding opportunities.

Becky Brooks, 3SG added that the situation remains challenging as they had
unfortunately lost a couple of charities recently. She added that a slight disconnect
remains in place and she felt that more could be done to protect local services.

Councillor Hardman asked if the previously mentioned £802,000 savings had been
cancelled.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that there had been no increase to the
savings required and that £401,000 had been achieved in the last year. She added
that more time might be required to achieve the remaining £401,000 savings.

The Chair asked Becky Brooks if she had considered making a statement to the
Corporate PDS Panel regarding local procurement.

Becky Brooks replied that she had not, but said she had raised the issue with the
Leader of the Council, Councillor Kevin Guy.

155
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Councillor Alison Born commented that she believed that the Council’s Constitution
Working Group were due to discuss this issue in the coming months.

Councillor Paul Crossley referred to the ‘Smoke free grant to local authorities’ and
asked if the funding of £216,000 could also be used to help stop people from vaping.

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that she believed it should but
would check for definite.

Councillor Crossley asked if an update on Leisure Services in the Chew Valley area
could be provided to the Panel.

Councillor Alison Born replied that she would respond to this point in due course
following the meeting.

Councillor Lesley Mansell noted the work undertaken to transfer ASC Statutory
Services back in house and wanted to acknowledge the achievement of all involved.
She also welcomed the savings made on the use of agency staff within Adult
Regulated Services.

She asked how much the mock CQC inspections would cost the Council.
She asked what the expected income was from the new golf course facilities.

She referred to the Somer Valley Links project and called for a Radstock to
Writhlington bus service to be put in place.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that the spend on agency staff was now
substantially lower and that they have been able to recruit good quality staff and
were more optimistic now about being able to retain them.

She said that the cost of the mock CQC inspections were not a lot and were an
important part of reviewing their processes as they cannot self-regulate themselves.

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that income of around £3,000 was
expected from the opening of the golf course and added that since its introduction
Foot Golf had proved to be incredibly popular.

Councillor Alison Born commented that believed that the subject of bus services was
as a matter for WECA.

The Chair asked for any initial comment on how the new public health contract for
Drug and Alcohol Services, now provided by Turning Point, was being received.

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that it was early days, but was
aware that to aid mobilisation Turning Point had drawn on some of their national
staff. She added that mobilisation meetings were taking place twice a week and that
they had received assurances of the venues being used by them. She stated that
she was not aware of any complaints.

156
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



The Chair asked if it was felt that there was enough access to swimming provision
across B&NES.

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that there is enough provision in
place.

The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member for her update on behalf of the Panel.

103 B&NES, SWINDON & WILTSHIRE INTEGRATED CARE BOARD (BSW ICB)
UPDATE

Laura Ambler, Director of Place for Bath and North East Somerset, BSW ICB
addressed the Panel and highlighted the following areas from within the update.

Transfer of community-based care services to HCRG Care Group

Community-based care services across Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire are now being provided by HCRG Care Group.

Since 1 April, the group has taken on the day-to-day running of the services, and
partnered with the NHS, local authorities and charities to transform the way in which
community care and support is provided across the region.

Patients have been advised that there will be no immediate changes to current
services, and care will continue to be provided as before.

Future of Integrated Care Boards

Over the last few months, both NHS England and the Department of Health and
Social Care have been discussing closer working and avoiding duplication. Work is
now under way to reform the NHS to best support the frontline to deliver for patients
and drive the government’s reform priorities.

Changes are expected to take place, at pace, over the coming months. As part of the
need to make best possible use of taxpayers’ money to support frontline services,
NHS England has informed us that the running and programme costs of ICBs will
need to be reduced by around 50 per cent.

While these plans are currently at an early stage, it has been confirmed that ICBs will
continue to exist and work around developing a new ICB model, which outlines
future functions and responsibilities, is already under way.

Eligible groups urged to come forward for vital Covid-19 booster vaccine

Local people who are most at risk of falling seriously ill from Covid-19 have been
urged to book an appointment to receive their spring booster vaccine.

All adults aged 75 and over, as well as those over the age of six months and living
with a weakened immune system, are eligible for the free vaccination. Older adults
living in care homes will also be offered the vaccine within their place of residence.

157
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Having the booster vaccine is seen as the most effective form of protection for
people who are more susceptible to the effects of Covid-19, especially as immunity
from previous vaccinations fades over time.

Patient survey aims to find out why people visit A&E

Patient visits to accident and emergency departments within local hospitals rose by
5.6 per cent during 2024, mainly due to a rise in the number of walk-ins.

Over the next three months, BSW ICB will be working with local Healthwatch groups,
along with hospitals in Bath, Swindon and Salisbury, to conduct the Big A&E Survey.
Face-to-face questionnaires will be handed out at all three A&Es in BSW, with a
digital survey also being launched across social media.

This survey will explore why patients choose accident and emergency departments
and their awareness of other treatment options, while also looking for any health
inequalities and service gaps.

The findings will be analysed and shared with system partners to understand the
reasons behind the rising visits, to make recommendations on plans to reduce this
demand and to improve communication with specific population groups who need
support.

Residents of BSW help shape new 10-Year Plan

Over the last few months, the ICB has been actively gathering and speaking to local
residents about what they would like to see in the forthcoming 10-Year Plan.

In Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire, the ICB has held
meaningful conversations with a range of diverse and dynamic community groups,
including people from black and minority ethnic backgrounds, those from our local
Muslim population and refugees and asylum seekers currently living in Swindon.

Engagement work has also been carried out with the Gypsy, Roma, Boater and
Traveller communities in Bath and Wiltshire.

Their thoughts, feelings and opinions have now been shared with our national
colleagues for inclusion in the plan, which is expected to be published in May.

An online survey, in which people can share their ideas for how the NHS can be
improved, is currently live at www.change.nhs.uk.

Councillor Lesley Mansell asked how better outcomes would be delivered regarding
community-based care.

Laura Ambler replied that the ICB has a Care Programme which has a focus on
prevention and that HCRG are working in partnership with us on this to establish the
needs of the local population and individuals.

Councillor Mansell asked what the impact of reducing the running and programme
costs of ICBs by 50 per cent will be.

158
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025


http://www.change.nhs.uk/

Laura Ambler replied that the understanding of this decision was ongoing and that
the Panel would be updated when more is known.

Councillor Mansell asked if the Panel could be informed of the local figures regarding
the take up of the Covid-19 vaccine booster.

Laura Ambler replied that she would consult with colleagues and reply to the Panel
on this matter.

Councillor Paul Crossley asked what measures are in place to attempt to stop
people from starting to smoke in the first instance?

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that there are local, regional and
national campaigns in place to try to stop people from smoking. She added that
retailers are also in receipt of information from Trading Standards with regard to
underage sales and that schools provide awareness and advice on the issue to

pupils.

Councillor Mansell said that she would like the Panel to be shown the results of the
A&E survey.

Laura Ambler replied that she would be happy to share the results of the survey with
the Panel.

Councillor Mansell asked if the Health Passport was in operation for the Gypsy,
Roma, Boater and Traveller communities.

Laura Ambler replied that she would need to confirm that with Primary Care
colleagues and respond to the Panel.

Councillor Anna Box commented that through her work she was aware of the
consequences of smoking and the numbers of people that now suffer from COPD
(Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease). She added that air pollution was also a
factor to be considered.

She added that vape batteries were also dangerous items for the Council’s refuse
workers to collect and that she was proud of the work carried out within the Council
to make single use vapes illegal to purchase.

The Director of Public Health & Prevention replied that they do work closely with
colleagues regarding air pollution and said that the focus of their work is to help
adults stop smoking.

The Chair commented that single use vapes would become illegal to purchase from
1st June 2025.

The Chair referred to the Covid-19 vaccine booster and asked what numbers were
required to be considered enough and to provide herd immunity.

159
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Laura Ambler replied that she would consult with colleagues and reply to the Panel
on this matter.

Councillor Liz Hardman asked there was any update to be given regarding the
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care to use their powers to call in the BSW
ICB’s proposed changes to community-based care in Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire, particularly the appointment of HCRG Care Group, which
was raised in March.

Laura Ambler replied that there was no update to be given at the present time.

The Chair, on behalf of the Panel, thanked Laura for attending and the BSW ICB for
their update.

104 ADULT SOCIAL CARE - CQC INSPECTION - REPORT / ACTION PLAN

Councillor Alison Born, Cabinet Member for Adult Services introduced the report to
the Panel. She explained that the CQC published their report for B&NES on 30th
January 2025, assigning a rating of Requires Improvement.

She said that prior to the final report being published a factual accuracy and
completeness review was undertaken by the ASC Leadership Team on the draft
CQC report.

She said that 75 points of factual accuracy and 69 completeness points were
submitted to CQC on 27th November 2024. She informed the Panel that for factual
accuracy 56 points were accepted/partially accepted and for completeness points 20
were accepted/partially accepted. The rating for B&NES remained unchanged even
though CQC accepted the maijority of the changes.

She stated that she was pleased that the CQC had recognised that B&NES has kind,
dedicated and passionate staff.

The Director of Adult Social Care addressed the Panel and said that an Improvement
Plan was now in place and that due to the Requires Improvement rating B&NES has
been assigned a Care and Health Improvement Advisor (CHIA) from Partners in
Care (Southwest Region) who partner with the Local Government Association and
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services.

She said that it is recognised that waiting lists are too high and they expect
resources to be put in place to alleviate this.

She added that it was likely that the CQC would seek a follow up review in 2026.

She stated that she was adamant that B&NES has great staff and said that they had
received compliments from Community Partners.

Councillor Liz Hardman thanked both the Cabinet Member and the Director of Adult
Social Care for their assurances. She asked what work was being done to address
the waiting lists for Occupational Therapy.

160
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



The Director of Adult Social Care replied that within one of the new care homes they
had a designated space where people could come and see what equipment is now
potentially available to them.

Councillor Hardman said it was good to hear that an Improvement Board is in place
and that a list of priorities has been set. She asked if there was a timescale to report
on any progress made.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that they have to submit the Improvement
Plan by 30" April and that a further timeline will be provided in the next report to the
Panel.

Kevin Burnett asked if B&NES was the only Local Authority to have issues with the
new methodology of the inspection process and if any further review of the process
was planned.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that the process was now complete as they
have been informed that they have no grounds for a review.

She confirmed that the Cabinet Member had written to Sir Julian Hartley, CQC Chief
Executive on three separate occasions but no response had been received to date.

The Cabinet Member added that she felt that other Councils have had a similar
experience regarding recent inspections and believed that the CQC were adapting
them in some way.

Kevin Burnett asked if any resource implications had been identified following the
inspection.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that additional resources would be
allocated towards Occupational Therapy and Adult Social Care Assessments.

She commended her robust management team and the fantastic Social Work staff.

Councillor Lesley Mansell commented on the importance of collecting data of the
seldom heard members of our community and the need to support those residents
with particular religions / beliefs. She added that was pleased to read that the
Director of Adult Social Care represented the local authority in the lesbian, gay,
bisexual, transgender or queer (LGBTQ+) community group.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that she was aware of the work to do
regarding equality and inclusion. She added that she was proud of her role to
champion LGBTQ+ for both service users and staff.

The Panel RESOLVED to:

i) Acknowledge the CQC Local Authority Assessment report published with a
rating of Requires Improvement.

ii) Agree that an update report on the progress against the ASC Improvement
Plan is submitted to Panel in September 2025.

161
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



105 RESPITE CARE

Councillor Alison Born introduced the report to the Panel said that she recognised
how important the provision of respite care was. She gave an assurance that Newton
House would remain open until a needs assessment had been carried out. She
added that the Council was working with a representative of three of the current
families to help shape what will be needed in the future. She informed the Panel that
the intention is to submit to them a further report in June that will contain clear
recommendations for the next steps.

The Director of Adult Social Care said that an all age strategy on respite care would

ultimately be arranged and that they would provide the families with regular updates.
She stated that there is no intention to stop the current service without an alternative
being in place.

She explained that three options were currently being considered:

1. Continue the current service provided by Dimensions.
2. Establish an internal service.
3. Go out to market for the service to be provided.

She said that officers have been tasked with developing an options appraisal and to
then share this with representatives of the families. She added that once their
feedback had been received the options appraisal would be shared with everyone.
She stated that she expected two meetings to take place with family representatives,
one in April and one in May. She said that the quality of the provision and the
resources involved would be key in making a decision.

She said that a timetable of meetings would be put in place and stated that the
Council will continue to fulfil its duties under the Care Act.

The Chair asked for confirmation that the services provided at Newton House will not
be stopped immediately in January 2026 should alternative provision still being
sought.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that she believed that additional time would
be given by the current provider if required.

Kevin Burnett asked if the options being considered were comparable to the current
provision.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that it was clear that this needs to be a local
service within B&NES and that if needed discussions about an alternative site would
take place.

Councillor Hardman asked if she felt that the needs of the families were being taken
into consideration.

Wendy Lucas replied that she felt their needs were understood, but concerns remain
over the timeline. She said that their children have complex needs and that it would

162
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



likely take months for all parties to be sure that the provision is right, should it have
to change.

She explained that for a previous change in provision it took her child six months to
feel comfortable. She added that parents / carers would need to be able to visit /
access the site at short notice and therefore the location must be within B&NES.

She said that she was aware that the provision must be cost effective and
acknowledged that future recipients of the service should also be taken into account.
She added that they understand the financial constraints, but stressed that the
pressure on the families is real.

The Director of Adult Social Care said that there is no intention to have this provision
outside of B&NES and that she had not seen an increase in respite needs at the
current time.

Councillor Onkar Saini asked if all the service users of Newton House had now been
reassessed and what lessons have been learnt since this process began in January.

The Director of Adult Social Care replied that all 17 service users had been
assessed and that they were working through their respective needs. She added that
they had learnt that appropriate communication with the families is vital and that they
need to consult before making such decisions in the future.

Councillor Alison Born agreed with point raised about communication and said that
the original letter about the end / change in provision should not have been sent. She
added that the Assistant Director for Operations & Safeguarding has been appointed
as the lead contact.

The Director of Adult Social Care said that it was important to make sure that
families of children approaching the age of 18 were aware of services they can
access as they transition into Adult Services.

Councillor Lesley Mansell commented that better engagement has to be
encouraged, and the quality of service must be maintained.

The Panel RESOLVED to agree that an update report on the progress of the Respite
Care review, including the needs analysis, is submitted to them in June 2025.

The Chair thanked everyone for their contributions on this matter and said the Panel
should receive a further update at their meeting on 14t June.

106 CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE - PARTICIPATION PROMISES

Councillor Paul May, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services introduced Rachel
Hale, Director and CEO of B&NES Parent Carer Forum to the Panel. He thanked
her, Olwyn Donnelly and Sarah McCluskey for their work on this matter and said that
he intends to take a similar report to the Cabinet at some point in the future.

Rachel Hale addressed the Panel and explained that the Parent Carer Forum works
with both Children and Adult Services and meets with them on a monthly basis.

163
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



She said that work relating to the promises began with assessing the support
required for children and young people with SEND.

She informed the Panel that several groups of young people have reviewed the
promises, including students from Chew Valley School. She said that a Makaton
version of the promises was also available.

She stated that the intention is for the promises to be adopted by all areas of the
Council.

The Head of Education Commissioning added that the promises have been shared
with colleagues working in Health and that it was important to make them visible to
all young people.

Kevin Burnett asked what the intended age range for the promises was.

Rachel Hale replied that for young people with SEND this was considered to be up to
the age of 25. She added that there was also a Participation Toolkit that was
available and said that the promises had been co-produced from the earliest point
possible.

Kevin Burnett asked how the implementation of the promises would be monitored.

Rachel Hale replied that discussions between Councillors and officers were required
to take place on how to maintain the levels of participation. She added that a lot of
co-working is already taking place and said that buy-in regarding the promises was
required from all Heads of Service.

Councillor May added that a Memorandum of Understanding was also being drafted.

Councillor Lesley Mansell welcomed the report and said that it was important for the
work to be recognised across the Council. She asked what consultation had taken
place with young people in Radstock.

Councillor May replied that Youth Connect South West (YCSW) were involved in the
review of the promises and that this included the Youth Hub in Radstock.

Councillor Mansell said that the responses to the issues raised during this process
were positive and asked for an Equalities Impact Assessment to be carried out to
raise further awareness and to assure that all factors have been taken into account.

Councillor May replied that the report had been raised with the Equalities Team and
felt that the report had addressed any issues. He reiterated his intention to take the
report to a meeting of the Cabinet and said that a report on implementation of the
promises would come to a future meeting of the Panel.

The Chair asked that this be submitted to them later in the year.

Rachel Hale stated that work had been carried out within their resources and said
that they have a good working dialogue with YCSW

164
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



Councillor May said that he was pleased to be working closely with the Parent Carer
Forum and that he recognised the need for co-production to be done correctly. He
added that he welcomed the role of the Panel in this process.

Councillor Anna Box thanked the Forum for their engagement in rural communities
and said that it was disappointing that youth provision in Bishop Sutton had been cut.

Councillor Ruth Malloy said that she would like to see all departments encouraged to
be aware of their responsibilities with regard to young people and decision making.

Councillor May agreed that this point was valid and said that he had had discussions
relating to the Local Plan and the need to have ways to talk to our current young
people and to have their views acknowledged.

Rachel Hale commented that the Council has to consider how young people
navigate around B&NES as a lot of projects were very Bath centric.

Councillor May acknowledged that access to facilities was important and that they
were looking to address this.

The Panel RESOLVED to:
i) Approve the proposed Participation Promises for Children and Young People
in B&NES.
i) Acknowledge the overview of how the Council participates and engages with
children and young people in B&NES.
107 PANEL WORKPLAN

The Chair introduced the item to the Panel and asked for suggestions for future
reports to the Panel.

Councillor Ruth Malloy suggested the subject areas:

e Review of local services re: Neuro Diversity
e Home Education (Diagnosis / Help with Mental Health issues for C&YP)

The Chair suggested that the Panel could receive a whole item on Children’s Mental
Health.

Councillor Liz Hardman asked for an update on Free School Meal — Auto Enrolment.
The Chair suggested that this subject forms part of the Cabinet Member Update.
Chris Batten asked for the Panel to updated on the work of the Music Service.

The Panel RESOLVED to note their current workplan and these proposals for future
reports.

165
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



The meeting ended at 12.43 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

166
Children, Adults, Health and Wellbeing Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 14th April, 2025



